

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

DATE: TUESDAY, 3 AUGUST 2021

TIME: 10:00 am

PLACE: Meeting Room G.02, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles

Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

Members of the Sub-Committee

Councillors Cank, Govind, Pickering and Shelton

One Non-Group Vacancy

Uf Suith

Members of the Sub-Committee are summoned to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business listed overleaf.

for Monitoring Officer

Information for members of the public. Attending meetings and access to information

You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, and Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes.

However, on occasion, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private.

Due to COVID restrictions, public access in person is limited to ensure social distancing. We would encourage you to view the meeting online but if you wish to attend in person, you are required to contact the Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting regarding arrangements for public attendance. A guide to attending public meetings can be found here: (Insert link to new content on website when available)

Members of the public can follow a live stream of the meeting on the Council's website at this link: http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts

Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, or by contacting us using the details below.

To hold this meeting in as Covid-safe a way as possible, all attendees are asked to follow current Government guidance and:

- maintain distancing while entering and leaving the room/building;
- remain seated and maintain distancing between seats during the meeting;
- wear face coverings throughout the meeting unless speaking or exempt;
- make use of the hand sanitiser available;
- when moving about the building to follow signs about traffic flows, lift capacities etc;
- comply with Test and Trace requirements by scanning the QR code at the entrance to the building and/or giving their name and contact details at reception prior to the meeting;
- if you are displaying Coronavirus symptoms: a high temperature; a new, continuous cough; or a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste, you should NOT attend the meeting, please stay at home, and get a PCR test.

Making meetings accessible to all

<u>Wheelchair access</u> – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users. Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate on the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically.

<u>Braille/audio tape/translation -</u> If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer (production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability).

<u>Induction loops -</u> There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms. Please speak to the Democratic Support Officer using the details below.

<u>Filming and Recording the Meeting</u> - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including social media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council's policy, persons and press attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting. Details of the Council's policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support.

If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public gallery etc..

The aim of the Regulations and of the Council's policy is to encourage public interest and engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked:

- ✓ to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption;
- ✓ to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided;
- √ where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting;
- ✓ where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed.

Further information

If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact Angie Smith, Democratic Support on **(0116) 454 6354 or email** angie.smith@leicester.gov.uk

For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151

LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURAL GUIDE

INTRODUCTORY PHASE

The meeting will be held in public unless stated otherwise in the report.

Present at the hearing will be Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee (minimum 3 Members), Officers from the Licensing Authority, a Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee, an Officer from Democratic Services.

- 1. Participants at the meeting will introduce themselves as follows:
 - a. Members and Officers
 - b. Statutory Consultees (if any)
 - c. The Applicant and any representatives
 - d. Persons who have made representations
- 2. The Chair will check that the Applicant has received a copy of the Officer report.

INFORMATION GATHERING

3. The Licensing Officer presents the report (previously circulated)

Questions (for clarification purposes only):

Members

Statutory Consultees (if any)

Persons who have made representations

Applicant and Representative (s)

4. Depending on the nature of the report, Statutory Consultees present their comments.

Questions (for clarification purposes only):

Members

Officers

Persons who have made representations

Applicant and Representative(s)

5. Persons who have made representations

Questions (for clarification purposes only):

Members

Officers

Statutory Consultees (is any)

Applicant and Representative(s)

6. Applicant's Case

Questions (for clarification purposes only):

Members

Officers

Statutory Consultees

Persons who have made representations

7. Summing up in the following order

Officers
Statutory Consultees
Persons who have made representations
Applicant and Representative(s)

8. The Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to advise the Sub-Committee in the presence of the Applicant, Representatives, Officers, Statutory Consultees, and persons who have made representations on relevant issues the Members need to be aware of when they come to make their decision.

DECISION MAKING

9. Apart from the Sub-Committee Members and the Democratic Support Officer everyone will be asked to withdraw from the meeting The Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee may be called back to the meeting to advise on the wording of the decision the Sub-Committee Members will have made during private deliberation.

The Applicant will be advised that the decision made by the Sub-Committee will be made public within 5 working days of the meeting.

PUBLIC SESSION

AGENDA

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION

If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will then be given.

- 1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR
- 2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
- 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to be discussed.

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Appendix A

The minutes of the meetings of the Licensing Enforcement Sub-Committee held on 4th May 2021 and 2nd July 2021 are attached, and Members will be asked to confirm them as a correct record.

5. PRIVATE SESSION

AGENDA

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE

Under the law, the Sub-Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private where in the circumstances the public interest in maintaining the matter exempt from publication outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

The Sub-Committee is recommended to consider the following reports in private on the grounds that they contain 'exempt' information as defined by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, as amended, and consequently that the Sub-Committee makes the following resolution:-

"that the press and public be excluded during consideration of the following reports in accordance with the provisions of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, because they involve the likely disclosure of 'exempt' information, as defined in the Paragraphs detailed below of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and taking all the circumstances into account, it is

considered that the public interest in maintaining the information as exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information."

Paragraph 1

Information relating to an individual.

Paragraph 3

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority).

B1) Application for a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence.

6. APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND Appendix B1 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE DRIVER'S LICENCE

The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submits a report.

7. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

Appendix A



Minutes of the Meeting of the LICENSING ENFORCEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Held: TUESDAY, 4 MAY 2021 at 10:00 am

PRESENT:

Councillor Pickering (Vice-Chair in the Chair)

Councillor Cank

Councillor Westley

*** ** **

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Councillor Pickering was appointed as Chair for the meeting.

It was noted that the hearing of the applications were held virtually in accordance with the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)(England and Wales)(Regulations) 2020 (the 2020 Regulations) and in accordance with the Council's own Remote Procedure Rules.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor Thomas.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Enforcement Sub-Committee held on 2 March 2021 be approved as a correct record.

5. PRIVATE SESSION

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded during consideration of the following reports in accordance with the provisions of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, because it involves the likely disclosure of 'exempt' information, as defined in the Paragraphs detailed below of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and taking all the circumstances into account, it is considered that the public interest in maintaining the information as exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Paragraph 1

Information relating to an individual.

Paragraph 2

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

Paragraph 3

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority).

- B1) Determination of Continued Entitlement to Retain a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers Licence
- B2) Application made under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

6. DETERMINATION OF CONTINUED ENTITLEMENT TO RETAIN A HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE DRIVERS LICENCE

Introductions were made and the Chair outlined the procedure of the meeting to those present.

The Director of Neighbourhoods and Environmental Services submitted a report that required Members to determine a driver's continued entitlement to retain a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Driver's Licence.

The Licence Holder and his legal representative and translator were present. The Licensing Team Manager, and Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee were also present.

The Licensing Team Manager outlined details of the application, including the relevant City Council Policy Guidelines.

The Licence Holder and his legal representative were invited to set out the reasons why he ought to be allowed to continue to hold a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence and answered questions from Members.

All parties were then given the opportunity to sum up and make any final comments,

The Sub-Committee received legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the Sub-

Committee in the presence of all those present.

In reaching their decision, Members felt they should deliberate in private on the basis that this was in the public interest, and as such outweighed the public interest of their deliberation taking place with the parties represented present.

The Chair announced that the decision and reasons made during private deliberation would be publicly announced in writing within five working days. The Chair informed the meeting the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee would be called back to give advice on the wording of the decision.

The Chair then asked all but Members of the Sub-Committee and Democratic Support Officers to disconnect from the meeting. The Sub-Committee then deliberated in private to consider their decision.

The Sub-Committee recalled the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to give advice on the wording of the decision.

RESOLVED:

That the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence be SUSPENDED FOR SIX MONTHS

Members had carefully considered the Committee Report placed before them. Members had taken account, where appropriate, of the Department for Transport's "Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards", the Regulators' Code and the Council's "Guidelines on relevance of convictions Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers". Members had taken account of the oral and written representations.

The Licence Holder had held a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence since 26 April 2013.

On 30 September 2019, the Licence Holder was convicted at trial before the Leicester Magistrates' Court of an offence of battery contrary to section 39 Criminal Justice Act 1988. He was made subject to a 12-month Conditional Discharge and was ordered to pay £200 costs, £50 compensation, and a victim surcharge of £20.

The conviction fell within the category of 'Other Offences' under the Council's Guidelines on Relevance of Convictions which in the absence of exceptional circumstances, provided for a period free from conviction for such offending which is 'dependent on circumstances'.

Members had considered the nature, type and circumstances of the Licence Holder's offending which arose out of an incident on 12 February 2019 when The Licence Holder headbutted another man. The Licence Holder informed Members that he was provoked by the injured party. Members noted that the Court rejected the Licence Holder's self-defence argument and awarded a small amount of compensation to the injured party.

The Licence Holder was required, in accordance with his Licence, to immediately notify the Council of the conviction. The Licence Holder did not notify his conviction to the Council immediately or at any time. The Licensing Section only became aware of the conviction when informed by Wolverhampton City Council on 13 January 2021, some 16 months after the conviction.

The Licence Holder's explanation for failing to notify the Council was that he did not appreciate the obligation and was in no way looking to evade the scrutiny of the Committee.

Members had been informed that Wolverhampton City Council refused an application by The Licence Holder in November 2020 for a Driver's Licence, but Members had decided the matter before them on its own merits.

Members had not been advised of any history of customer complaint against the Licence Holder.

Members were mindful that the protection of the public was their overriding consideration. However, Members noted that the incident on 12 February 2019 was not related to the Licence Holder's employment as a taxi driver. Members noted the Licence Holder's explanation of his actions and his indication that this was an isolated incident very much determined by its particular circumstances.

Members noted that when a driver failed to provide the Council with required information, the driver hindered the Council's ability to exercise its regulatory functions. Despite the explanation provided by the Licence Holder, he should have been aware of the requirement to notify the Council of his conviction. He had been licensed by the Council for approximately 8 years and the requirement was detailed on the front page of his Licence. However, Members took due note of the absence of customer complaint against The Licence Holder in his 8 years as a driver licensed by Leicester City Council.

Members found the circumstances presented to them in this case, constitute grounds under both section 61(1)(a)(i) and section 61(1)(b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and that it was appropriate, in the particular circumstances of this matter, to suspend the Licence for a period of 6 months.

A period of suspension would emphasise to the Licence Holder the need for future compliance to protect the public.

The Licence Holder would be informed of his right to appeal the decision to the Magistrates' Court within the period of 21 days beginning with the day on which he was notified of the decision. The suspension would not have effect until that 21-day period had expired, or if the decision was appealed against, until the appeal was disposed of.

7. APPLICATION MADE UNDER THE SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013

Introductions were made and the Chair outlined the procedure of the meeting to those present.

The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submitted a report that required Members to determine an application made under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2003.

The Licensing Team Manager, Licensing Enforcement Officer, PC Benjamin Broad (Leicestershire Police) PC Kaajal Jethwa (Leicestershire Police), DS David Wadsworth (Leicestershire Police), and the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee were present.

The applicant had been provided with all papers in the case but did not attend the meeting or submit any further representations to the written representations previously submitted.

The Licensing Team Manager outlined details of the application, including the relevant statutory provisions. With the assistance of the Licensing Enforcement Officer, he outlined the Licensing Section's representations against the grant of the application.

DS Wadsworth outlined the reasons for Police representations against the grant of the application.

All parties present were then given the opportunity to sum up their case and make any final comments.

The Sub-Committee received legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee in the presence of all those present.

In reaching their decision, Members felt they should deliberate in private on the basis that this was in the public interest, and as such outweighed the public interest of their deliberation taking place with the parties represented present.

The Chair announced that the decision and reasons made during private deliberation would be publicly announced in writing within five working days. The Chair informed the meeting the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee would be called back to give advice on the wording of the decision.

The Chair then asked all but Members of the Sub-Committee and Democratic Support Officers to disconnect from the meeting. The Sub-Committee then deliberated in private to consider their decision.

The Sub-Committee recalled the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to give advice on the wording of the decision.

RESOLVED:

That the application made under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act

2013 be REFUSED.

The Sub-Committee had considered an application by Attock Metals and the legal representative for the applicant for a Scrap Metal Dealer's Licence in respect of a site at 19 Kent Street, Leicester.

No Company representative attended the hearing. Members had considered all the written representations previously submitted and the oral representations presented at the hearing by the Police and the Licensing Section. Members had taken account of the Statutory Guidance and the Regulators' Code.

The site was at the rear of a garage business on Kent Street and consisted of a yard area and a small prefabricated office. Access to the site was via a side entrance off Kent Street. The Company rented the site from the owner of the garage. The Company had been in existence for almost 10 years, having been incorporated on 05 September 2011. The applicant had been the sole director of the Company since 01 May 2019 and was to be the site manager if the Licence was granted.

By way of history, Members noted that in 2017, when the applicant's father was the sole director of the Company, the Council granted a 3-year Site Licence to the Company for a site at Humberstone Road, Leicester expiring on 25 February 2020. On 01 May 2019, the applicant became the sole director of the Company when his father resigned his position. In July 2019, the Company moved its site from Humberstone Road to Kent Street. It did not make the required application to vary the Licence to include the new site, so it was at that time carrying on business as a scrap metal dealer without a licence. On 14 and 16 October 2020, the Police visited the Kent Street site. On 22 October 2020, an online application was submitted to renew and vary the Humberstone Road Licence so as to change the site details to Kent Street. However, as the Humberstone Road Licence had expired on 25 February 2020, there was no Licence to renew. On 27 November 2020, the Council issued a Closure Notice detailing the unlicensed business operation should cease. On 27 November 2020, an online application was submitted for a new Licence at the Kent Street site.

In accordance with section 3 of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 Members must not grant the application unless they were satisfied that the Company was a suitable person to carry on business as a scrap metal dealer. In determining whether the Company is a suitable person, Members were required to have regard to whether the applicant, as the sole director of the Company, was a suitable person.

The Police and the Council's Licensing Section had made representations against the grant of the Licence. They both referred to having no confidence in the applicant to operate within the legislation.

Due to the inability to assess reliability, Members had given no weight the information provided by the Police that in October 2020 "... intelligence was received that Attock Metals was regularly taking stolen catalytic converters and

paying cash for them, the motivation and reliability of the source is unknown ..."

The Police had provided information regarding two site visits to the Kent Street premises on 14 and 16 October 2020. While the legal representative for the applicant, in correspondence suggested on behalf of the Company, that Members should have disregarded the Police evidence regarding those site visits, Members were satisfied that it was right for them to take it into account. Members had balanced it against the written information provided by the applicant and the legal representative for the applicant.

The Police indicate that the applicant did not have complete records of receipts and purchases of metals, as required under sections 13 and 15 of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. The applicant disputed this as regards records of receipts but accepted that records of sales were not kept in accordance with sections 14 & 15.

The applicant admitted that Kent Street site was operated without a Licence from July 2019 until October 2020 when he realised at the Police site visit on 14 October 2020 that the Humberstone Road Licence had expired. The applicant provided a twofold explanation for this.

As regards the period July 2019 to 14 October 2020, the applicant had indicated he believed the Licence for Humberstone Road would also cover the Kent Street premises. The legal representative for the applicant had referred to this as an innocent mistake.

As regards the period 26 February 2020, the applicant had also indicated that he didn't realise the Licence for Humberstone Road had expired. The legal representative for the applicant referred to this as an oversight caused by the strains of trying to keep a small business afloat during a national pandemic.

The legal representative for the applicant indicated that the Humberstone Road Licence lapsed during the backdrop of the Company relocating premises after 10 years when the Company was undergoing a change in ownership and direction during the Coronavirus pandemic.

However, the Licensing Section pointed to evidence that the Company had continued to operate as a scrap metal dealer following the Police visits in October 2020 and following the service of a Notice of Closure on 27 November 2020. Members were told that in the period February 2020 to March 2021, the Company traded consistently for 11 of those months receiving approximately £13,925 from T Watts Waste Management for the sale of metal.

In accordance with section 3 of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013, in determining whether the Company and the applicant were suitable persons, Members might have had regard to any information they considered to be relevant.

Members noted that neither the Company nor the applicant had any criminal convictions. Members also noted that neither had been the subject of any

relevant enforcement action. It might have been the case that the Company and the applicant were prosecuted under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 in due course. In that event, they would at that time be subject to relevant enforcement action, but at the present time they were not. Members had not been informed of any previous refusals or revocations of relevant Licences other than the Council's obvious refusal to accept the application to renew the already expired Humberstone Road Licence.

Members noted the civil proceedings in the High Court in 2018 in which both the Company and the applicant's father, who was then the sole director, were found to be in contempt. Those proceedings related to a failure to comply with Undertakings given in Court proceedings in 2014.

The Licensing Section and the Police did not believe the Company had adequate measures in place to comply with the requirements of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 in the form of record keeping regarding transactions and the identity of the suppliers of metal. Members agreed.

Members noted that subsequent to the Police visits to the Kent Street site in October 2020, the applicant had admitted, through their legal representative that records of sales were not kept in accordance with sections 14 and 15 of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013.

Members found that there has been a clear lack of care in relation to the failure to seek variation of the Humberstone Road Licence to detail the Kent Street site and in the failure to renew the Licence. This had led to the unlicensed operation of the Kent Street site since July 2019.

The applicant had informed Members in writing that the operation as a scrap metal dealer ceased in October 2020 following the Police visits to the site and the realisation at that time that the Humberstone Road Licence had expired in February 2020. However, the Licensing Section informed Members that the Company continued to operate as a scrap metal dealer subsequent to October 2020 and thereafter, even subsequent to the issue of a Closure Notice in November 2020, receiving approximately £13,925 in the period February 2020 to March 2021 for the sale of metal.

In these circumstances, Members had no confidence that there would be future compliance with the required legislation. Members were not satisfied that that Attock Metals and the legal representative for the applicant and the applicant were suitable persons and therefore refused the application.

The applicant would be informed they may appeal the decision within 21 days to the Magistrates Court.

8. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

There being no other urgent business, the meeting closed at 12.34pm.



9.

Minutes of the Meeting of the LICENSING ENFORCEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Held: FRIDAY, 2 JULY 2021 at 10:00 am

PRESENT:

Councillor Pickering (Chair)

Councillor Cank

Councillor Shelton

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Councillor Pickering was appointed as Chair for the meeting.

10. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.

12. APPLICATION TO RENEW A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE: PLATINUM LACE, 1 ABBEY STREET, LEICESTER

The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submitted a report that required Members to determine an application to renew a sexual entertainment venue (SEV) licence under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009, for Platinum Lace, 1 Abbey Street, Leicester, LE1 3TE.

Mr Darren Wyse (General Manager and DPS), Mr Matthew Phipps (Solicitor) were present. Ms Helen Everett who had made representation was present. The Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications) and Legal Representative to the Sub-Committee were also present.

Introductions were made and the procedure for the meeting outlined.

The Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications) outlined the details of the application. Ms Everett interrupted to say that the first sentence in her representation had not been included in the main body of the report. The Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee advised Ms Everett that there would be an opportunity to ask questions following delivery of the report by the Licensing Team Manager. The Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications) continued to present the report.

Ms Everett was given the opportunity to present her case for objecting to the application and answered questions from Members.

Mr Phipps on behalf of the applicant was then given the opportunity to respond to the representation and answered questions from Ms Everett.

As a point of clarity, the Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications) explained that during the application process, all legal requirements had been met by the applicant and by the Licensing Authority, and that there was not legal requirement to publish the application on the Council's website.

All parties were given the opportunity to sum up their positions and make any final comments.

The Sub-Committee received legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee in the presence of all those present.

In reaching their decision, Members felt they should deliberate in private on the basis that this was in the public interest, and as such outweighed the public interest of their deliberation taking place with the parties represented present.

The Chair announced that the decision and reasons made during private deliberation would be publicly announced in writing within five working days. The Chair informed the meeting the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee would be called back to give advice on the wording of the decision.

The Chair then asked all but Members of the Sub-Committee and Democratic Support Officers to leave the meeting. The Sub-Committee then deliberated in private to consider their decision

The Sub-Committee recalled the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to give advice on the wording of the decision.

RESOLVED:

That the application for the renewal of a sexual entertainment venue licence for Platinum Lace, 1 Abbey Street, Leicester, LE1 3TE be GRANTED.

Members of the Sub-Committee had been asked to determine an application submitted in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence in relation to premises known as Platinum Lace.

In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee Members carefully considered

the Committee report presented by the Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications), the representations presented by all parties and the legal advice provided.

The Sub-Committee Members had considered the application on its own merits and in accordance with the Council's Policy on Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues and had given due regard to the Councils' Public Sector Equality Duty in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.

The Sub-Committee had considered carefully the representations from the member of the public and those made by the applicant.

Members had not taken anything presented to them at face value and confirmed they had scrutinised the information put before them by all parties.

The Sub-Committee had considered all the decisions available to them. As a result of what they had heard, Members were satisfied that it was justifiable and proportionate to RENEW THE LICENCE SUBJECT TO ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS.

REASON FOR THE DECISION

Members considered that none of the mandatory or discretionary grounds upon which the application could be refused had been met. The Sub-Committee had been informed that there had been no complaints regarding the premises and were confident based on the information before them that the premises would be managed in an appropriate and professional manner.

Members were of the opinion however, that the following additional conditions should be added to the licence together with the standard conditions that would automatically be applied:

- The Licence issued is for the premises in its existing layout. Any changes to the layout must be approved in advance by Leicester City Council
- The Licence issued is for the Managers listed on the application. Any changes to the management of the company will need to be approved by Leicester City Council

Sub-Committee members stated the additional conditions were justifiable and proportionate in order to ensure the premises continued to be suitable for the activity for which it is intended and to ensure the company continued to be managed in a professional and appropriate manner.

13. APPLICATION TO RENEW A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE: SPEARMINT RHINO, 64 BELGRAVE GATE, LEICESTER

The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submitted a report that required Members to determine an application to renew a sexual

entertainment venue (SEV) licence under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009, for Spearmint Rhino, 64 Belgrave Gate, Leicester, LE1 3GQ.

Mr John Specht (Vice-President of Spearmint Rhino UK, and Director of Bacchus Leisure Limited holder of the premises licence) and Mr Robert Sutherland (Solicitor) were present. Ms Helen Everett who had made representation was present. The Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications) and Legal Representative to the Sub-Committee were also present.

Introductions were made and the procedure for the meeting outlined.

The Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications) outlined the details of the application.

Ms Everett was given the opportunity to present her case for objecting to the application and answered questions from Members.

Mr Sutherland and Mr Specht were then given the opportunity to respond to the representation and answered questions from Ms Everett.

All parties were given the opportunity to sum up their positions and make any final comments.

The Sub-Committee received legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee in the presence of all those present.

In reaching their decision, Members felt they should deliberate in private on the basis that this was in the public interest, and as such outweighed the public interest of their deliberation taking place with the parties represented present.

The Chair announced that the decision and reasons made during private deliberation would be publicly announced in writing within five working days. The Chair informed the meeting the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee would be called back to give advice on the wording of the decision.

The Chair then asked all but Members of the Sub-Committee and Democratic Support Officers to leave the meeting. The Sub-Committee then deliberated in private to consider their decision

The Sub-Committee recalled the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to give advice on the wording of the decision.

RESOLVED:

That the application for the renewal of a sexual entertainment venue licence for Spearmint Rhino, 64 Belgrave Gate, Leicester, LE1 3GQ be GRANTED.

Members of the Sub-Committee had been asked to determine an application

submitted in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence in relation to premises known as Platinum Lace.

In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee Members carefully considered the Committee report presented by the Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications), the representations presented by all parties and the legal advice provided.

The Sub-Committee Members had considered the application on its own merits and in accordance with the Council's Policy on Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues and had given due regard to the Councils' Public Sector Equality Duty in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.

The Sub-Committee had considered carefully the representations from the member of the public and those made by the applicant.

Members had not taken anything presented to them at face value and confirmed they had scrutinised the information put before them by all parties.

The Sub-Committee had considered all the decisions available to them. As a result of what they had heard, Members were satisfied that it was justifiable and proportionate to RENEW THE LICENCE SUBJECT TO ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS.

REASON FOR THE DECISION

Members considered that none of the mandatory or discretionary grounds upon which the application could be refused had been met. The Sub-Committee had been informed that there had been no complaints regarding the premises and were confident based on the information before them that the premises would be managed in an appropriate and professional manner.

Members were of the opinion however, that the following additional conditions should be added to the licence together with the standard conditions that would automatically be applied:

- The Licence issued is for the premises in its existing layout. Any changes to the layout must be approved in advance by Leicester City Council
- 2. The Licence issued is for the Managers listed on the application. Any changes to the management of the company will need to be approved by Leicester City Council

Sub-Committee members stated the additional conditions were justifiable and proportionate in order to ensure the premises continued to be suitable for the activity for which it is intended and to ensure the company continued to be managed in a professional and appropriate manner.

14. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 1.28pm.

Appendix B1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted